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From: Stephen Brand
Sent: Tuesday, 30 July 2002 3:08 PM
To: jsct~aph.gov.au
Subject: JSCOT Submission

July 30, 2002

Committee Secretary
Joint Standing Committee on Treaties
Department of House of Representatives
Parliament House
Canberra, ACT

Attached please find a submission from the Bayu-Undan joint venture participants, Phillips Petro’eum
Company (91-12) Pty Ltd, Phillips Petroleum ZOO, Phillips Petroleum Timor Sea Pty Ltd, Agip
Australia 91-13 Limited, Inpex Sahul Ltd, Santos (JPDA 91-12) Pty. Ltd. and Petroz (Timor Sea) Pty.
Ltd. with regard to the Timor Se~Treaty. Should you have any queries please contact me.

Stephen R. Brand
Phillips Petroleum Company Australia Pty Ltd
West Perth, Western Australia
tel: 61-8-9423-6666
fax: 61-8-9423-6677
email address: srbrand@ppco.com

Worthington, Glenn (REPS)

01/08/2002



SUBMISSIONBY THE BAYU—UNDAN JOINT VENTURE PARTICPANTS
TOTHE

JOINT STANDING COMMITTEE ON TREATIES

PERTH
July 2002



2

1. INTRODUCTION

As the Unit Operatorof the Bayu-Undanfield, Phillips Petroleum(91-12) Pty Ltd
(Phillips) welcomesthis opportunityto submitour commentsasthe Joint Standing
Committeeon Treaties(JSCOT)considerstheTimor SeaTreaty. This submissionis
made on behalf of Phillips and its,: Bayu-Undanco-venturers,Santos,Inpex, Agip,
Petroz,andpotentialnewparticipantsTokyoElectricPowerCompanyandTokyoGas.

The Timor Sea,wherethis groupof companiesis developingthe l3ayu-Undanfield,
contains~ of regionaland global significance. Full development
of theBayu-Undanreserveswill provideopportunityandvaluefor all stakeholders.

•For thenewnationof EastTimor, theBayu-Undanreservesoffer theprospectof ahigh
degreeof economic and fiscal self-reliance. Developmentof thesereserveswill
stimulatenewinvestmentsandemploymentandprovideasecurerevenuestreamfor
Government.They offer the opportunity to rebuild and regeneratethe country’s
economyandshatteredinfrastructure.

For Australia,Bayu-UndanandotherTimor Seagasreservescanpavethewayfor new
exportindustriesandavigorousandamorecompetitivedomesticgasmarket,aswell
asprovidingasignificantsourceof governmentrevenue.

For theprivatesector,theTimor Seagasreserves— estimatedat22 trillion cubic feet—
are a significant commercial opportunity, with the potential to supply growing
marketsin Asia, andNorth Americaaswell asAustralia.

The Timor SeaTreaty, now beingconsideredfor ratificationby the JSCOT,provides
the framework that will enableAustraliaandEastTimor to developthesemajor oil
andgasdeposits.

Our Focus: Timing

Thebackgroundto this importantTreatyhasno doubtbeencoveredin moredetail in
othersubmissionsto you. This submissionfocusesparticularly on theadvantagesof
theTreatyandtheimportancethatwe attachto its promptratification.

TheBayu-Undanprojecthasahistory thatgoesbackmorethantenyears,butit isonly
in thepastnine monthsthatwe found solutionsto a seriesof difficult issuesthat, at
variousstages,seriouslythreateneddevelopmentof theresource.

Also duringthepastninemonths,we havebeenableto completenegotiationsfor the
saleof theBayu-Undangas. TheBayu-Undanfield is now fully commercialised- we
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are committed to the delivery of liquefied natural gas (LNG) by January2006 to
Japanesecustomers.To meetthisdeadlineandavoid substantialdelayfrom theonset
of thewetseason,wemustbeginconstructionon theLNG plant in Novemberof this
year. But prudenceandinternalco-venturerapprovalprocessesdictatethatwecannot
commenceconstructionwithout adequateassurancesof the legalandfiscal outcomes
of our investment.

In this regard,we areconcernedby anysuggestionthatprogressonanyothermatter
would influenceyourviewson theprocessfor completinglegislationfor ratificationof
theTreaty. This would seemto be contraryto the Memorandumof Understanding
betweenthe governmentsof Australia and EastTimor Concerningan International
UnitisationAgreement(IUA), signedin Diii onMay 20th,2002,by thePrimeMinisters
of both countries,where it is statedthat: “The conclusionof the Agreementis withOut
prejudice to theearly entryinto forceofthe Treatyandthat theparties will work expeditiously
andin goodfaith to satisfytheir respectiverequirementsfor theentryintoforceoftheTreaty”

This understandingis very important as it removes the possibility of unforeseen
delays. Again, our submissionstronglysupportsratificationof theTreatyassoonas
possiblewith no impactonthetimingof theIUA negotiations.

2. THE IMPORTANCEOF BAYU-UNDAN

The Bayu-Undanfield is located in the Joint PetroleumDevelopmentArea UPDA)
definedby Article 3 of theTreaty. It containsestimatedreservesof 400million barrels
of condensateand liquefied petroleumgasand3.4 trillion cubic feet of natural gas.
The field is locatedin 80 metresof water about500kiometresnorthwestof Darwin
and250kiometressouthof Suaiin EastTimor.

Our vision is to develop Bayu-Undanin two phases.The first, which has already
commenced,is a gas-recycleproject. Gasrecoveredwill be strippedof liquids and
thenreinjectedinto the reservoir. The liquids will be sold. Liquid productionfrom
thisfield isexpectedto commencein early2004andwill peakataround110,000barrels
perdayof condensateandLPG.

Thesecondandlargerpart of thevision is, insteadof reinjectingtheBayu-Undangas,
to pipethatgasto anonshoreLNG plant in Darwinfor exportto Japan.Bayu-Undan
is contractedto supply 3 million tonnesof LNG a year to Tokyo Electric Power
CompanyandTokyo Gasfor a periodof 17 yearscommencingin January2006. This
contractis expectedto usenearly100percentof thel3ayu-Undanreserves.

SUBMJSSIONBY THE BAYU-UNDAN JOINT-VENTURE PARTICIPANTS
TO TIlE JOINT STANDING COMMI1TEE ON TREATIES



4

Importanceto EastTimor

Bayu-Undanis vital to theeconomicwell beingof thepeopleof EastTimor, not only
overits first yearsof its independencebutfor thelongerterm.

For a governmentneeding to rebuild the country’s entire economic and social
infrastructure,taxationandroyaltypaymentsfrom Bayu-Undanwill almostcertainly
representits biggestsourceof revenue.

In additionto royaltiesandtaxationrevenueof $IJS2.5 - 3 billion flowing directly to
theEastTimor governmentover the 17-plusyearslife of theproject, theBayu-Undan
participantspledgeddirect investmentof around$US13million in associatedproject
andcommunityinfrastructureandtraining,and$US44million in ongoingexpenditure
over the20-yearlife of theproject.

Our direct investmentassociatedwith this project is specifically designedto bring
widereconomicandsocialbenefitsto EastTimor:

• First, it will provide infrastructuresuch as a port, airport and health facilities,
whichwill beavailableto thecommunityatlarge.

• Second,our trainingandinfrastructurestrategiesaredirectlylinked to EastTimor’s
nationaldevelopmentobjectives.

• Last, therewill also be multiplier benefitsfrom local wagesandserviceindustry
growth as it will employ East Timoreseand expatriatelabour, off-shore and
onshore,duringbothdevelopmentandoperation.

We gavea high priority to reachingagreementwith EastTimor authoritieson terms
andconditionsfor theemploymentof EastTimorese. We alreadyhavemorethan30
employeesfrom EastTimor.

An underlyingprinciple of our engagementin EastTimor is facilitation of othernew
businessactivity, both by East Timorese and foreign investors. We want our
engagementandactionsto encourageothers.

Importanceto Australia

Australiahasa very significantfinancial andstrategicinterestin seeingBayu-Undan
developedassoonaspossible. It will helpunderwriteasecureandindependentEast
Timor, amatterthatAustraliaacknowledgesto beof greatstrategicsignificance.

Further,Bayu-Undanwill bring substantialbenefitsto Australia in its own right. It
will generatesome $A2 billion in taxationand royalty revenuefor the Australian
Governmentover the life of theproject. It will createalargenumberof jobswith the
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installationof amajor LNG plant in Darwin. It alsoopensthepossibility thatnatural
gasfrom theTimor Searegioncould bebroughtonshorefor supplyto identifiedgas
customersin theNorthernTerritory andsouthandsoutheastAustralia. Thepotential
impactonthe futureeconomyof Darwin isenormous.

3. HISTORYOF THE TREATY

Theneedfor aTreatygoesbackto 1972when AustraliaandIndonesiaagreedon their
mutualseabedboundaries.

That 1972 agreement“was basedon the 1958 Conventionon the ContinentalShelf
whichsaidthatstatesshouldcontroltheseato thelimits of theircontinentalshelf,the
place wheretheseafloor dropsaway to thedeepocean.The arrangementcreatesa
boundarymuchcloserto IndonesiathanAustralia,giving Australiacontrol over the
major part of theTimor Sea.Portugal(thecolonialpower in EastTimor) arguedthat
theboundarybetweenAustraliaandEastTimor shouldbebasedontheprinciple Of a
median(mid-way)line. Thustherewasa gapin theline drawnbetweenIndonesiaand
Australia in 1972 —the so-calledTimor Gap.” (Dr StephenSherlock,ForeignAffairs,
DefenceandTradeGroup,ResearchNoteno.452001-02)

IndonesiainheritedtheTimor Gapdisputeafter it invadedEastTimor in December
1975. It wasnotuntil 1986thatIndonesiaandAustraliaagreedthatnegotiationscould
proceed.Theylasteduntil 1989,when a compromiseagreementwas finally achieved
with thesigningof the“TreatybetweenAustraliaandtheRepublicof Indonesiaon the
Zoneof Cooperationin an areabetweenthe Indonesianprovinceof EastTimor and
NorthernAustralia”. This allowedfor joint exploitationof oil andgasresourcesin the
areaof overlappingclaims.

Exploration activity in the ProductionSharing Contractsthat contain Bayu-Undan
beganin 1991. TheBayu-Undandiscoverywasmadein December1995.

OnOctober25, 1999, following theoverwhelmingvotefor independenceandsix days
afterthe IndonesianPeople’sConsultativeAssemblyendorsedtheEastTimoreseballot
results, the UN Security Council adoptedResolution1272 (1999) establishingthe
United Nations TransitionalAdministration in East Timor (UNTAET). UNTAET
would be “endowedwith overall responsibilityfor the administrationof EastTimor
andwill beempoweredto exerciseall legislativeandexecutiveauthorityincluding the
administrationofjustice.”

On 6 December1999, Foreign Minister Downer informed Parliamentthat: “On 17
Novemberthe IndonesianGovernmentconfirmed . . .that the Treaty is no longer
betweenIndonesiaand Australia. During the courseof last week, I discussedthe
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Treatyarrangementswith Sergiode Mello, the specialrepresentativeof theSecretary
Generalfor EastTimor. The UN is willing to act for EastTimor asAustralia’s treaty
partnerduring the transitionalphase. Thereafter,the treatywill be a matterfor an
independentEastTimor. TheEastTimoresehaveconfirmedto us theiracceptanceof
thesetransitionalprocesses.”(Hansard,6 December1999).

In that role, UNTAET assumedresponsibility for East Timor’s interestsunder the
Timor SeaTreaty, including theJointPetroleumDevelopmentArea UPDA). Ministers
of thefirst andsecondEastTimor Transitionalgovernmentswerecloselyinvolvedand
madeall decisionsaffectingdevelopmentof offshoreoil andgasreserves.

Australiaandthefirst TransitionalGovernmentagreedat anearlystagethattheterms
of the Treaty would remain in place until a new Treaty was signedwith the
independentGovernmentof EastTimor. To allow planningto proceed,EastTirnor
enteredinto negotiationsin October2000 over arrangementsgoverningthe JPDA.
Thesenegotiationsculminatedin a new Timor SeaArrangement(signedon 5 July
2001), which outlinedthe frameworkfor a treaty to coverthe joint developmentof
resourcesin theTimor Sea.

The Arrangement,however,changedthe revenuesharebetweenEast Timor and
Australiafrom petroleumdevelopmentactivities in the JPDA from 50/50to 90/10.
This changehad a significant impact on the Bayu-Undanparticipants,making the
project uneconomicbecauseof themuchgreaterexposureto higher taxationratesin
EastTimor.

The resulting negotiationswith the governmentsof EastTimor and Australia have
been very fluid and complex. In East Timor, negotiationswere conductedby a
transitionalgovernment,with no existing systemof law or regulatoryframework in
place. Indeed the whole system of government, including the supporting
administrative systems, had unfortunately been destroyed. The East Timor
governmentandtheiradvisershadthetaskof buildinganewnationfrom naught,and
in avery shorttime.

Our interestin thenegotiationswasto achievesufficient regulatoryandfiscalcertainty
that we could confidently enter into commercialcontractsandmake the necessary
investmentsthatwould enableusto honourthosecontracts.

An agreementbetweenEastTimor andtheBayu-Undanparticipantswaspossibleonly
becauseultimatelyeachof thepartiesto thenegotiationswaspreparedto takeabroad
view of the developmentandwork towardsan agreementthat achieveda balanced
outcomefor all stakeholders. In this spirit of partnershipandwith a new degreeof
opennessand trust, the East Timor and the Bayu-Undan participantsfinalised a
mutually satisfactoryUnderstandingsAgreementin December2001.
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Thatarrangementrequires,amongotherthings,variationsto theProductionSharing
Contractand theEastTimor tax regime.We expectthat documentationof all these
arrangementswill becompleteby theendof August.

4. THE NEED FOR CERTAINTY

PhillipsandtheotherBayu-UndanparticipantssupporttheTimor SeaTreatyassigned
on20 May 2002.

It provides a comprehensiveregulatory framework covering matters such as
developmentandproduction,themarineenvironment,employment,healthandsafety
of workers,surveillance,security,searchandrescueandair traffic servicesaswell as
theavoidanceof doubletaxationin theapplicationof thetaxationlaws of EastTimor
andAustralia. The treatyalsoprovidesfor thecreationof a petroleumminingcode.
A taxationcodefor theavoidanceof doubletaxationhasbeendevelopedandforms
AnnexG of theTimorSeaTreaty.

Asnoted,theBayu-Undangasreservesarenow fully commercialisedand,with proper
assuranceson legalandfiscal matters,is readyto proceed.Ratificationof theTreatyis
essentialto give usthelegal frameworkon whichto proceedin timefor usto meetour
contractualobligations. There is no room for slippageif we are to haveLNG in
Darwinreadyfor exportto Japanin January2006.

Our contractualobligationsrequireusto beginconstructionby Novemberof thisyear
to avoid substantialdelay from theonsetof thewet season. A delay in ratification
would have serious financial consequences,not only for both Phillips and its
participantsbut also East Timor for which theneedfor employmentand revenue
generationis pressing.A delaywould alsohaveadetrimentalimpacton theeconomy
of theNorthernTerritory, particularlytheDarwinarea.

Completeregulatorycertaintyandfull ratificationof theTimor SeaTreatyis essential
for theBoardof Directorsof Phillipsandtheboardsof our Bayu-Undanparticipantsto
confidentlyapprovethe investmentsandfinancingthatarenecessaryfor aproject of
thismagnitudeto proceed.

StephenRBrand
President
Phillips Petroleum(91-12)PtyLtd
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